
"UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

REGION I 
475 ALLENDALE ROAD 

KING OF PRUSSIA, PENNSYLVANIA 19406-1415 

December 29, 1999 

EA 99-297 

Carl Buckland 
Plant Manager 
Southeastern Plastics Corporation 
15 Home News Row 
New Brunswick, NJ 08901 

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF VIOLATION 
(NRC Inspection Report No. 999-90001/99-008) 

Dear Mr. Buckland: 

This refers to the NRC inspection conducted from October 27 through November 23, 1999, at 
the Zeta Consumer Products Corporation (Zeta), 555 Route 57 East, Washington Township, 
New Jersey, and at Southeastern Plastics Corporation (Southeastern), 15 Home News Row, 
New Brunswick, New Jersey. The purpose of the inspection was to review the circumstances 
leading to the appearance of an Ohmart scanning gauge containing 1200 millicuries of krypton
85 at a warehouse that is owned by Zeta. The gauge was stored on a pallet and was among 
several other pieces of used machinery and equipment that had been brought to the warehouse 
from other plants to be sold at an auction.  

During the inspection, the NRC learned that Southeastern had acquired the Ohmart gauge 
under a general license, and installed it at the Southeastern facility in July 1991. Subsequently, 
the gauge was removed and transferred to the Zeta warehouse. This was an unauthorized 
transfer since Zeta does not have a specific NRC license to possess the gauge. As such, 
Southeastern's actions constituted an abandonment of the gauge, contrary to NRC 
requirements for a general licensee. Other apparent violations were also identified during the 
inspection, including the abandonment of another thickness gauge (manufactured by NDC), 
containing 150 millicuries of americium-241, that Southeastern had acquired in March of 1986.  
The NDC gauge is considered abandoned since it could not be located at the time of the 
inspection. Details were provided in the inspection report sent to you on December 2, 1999. On 
December 15, 1999, a predecisional enforcement conference was held with you in our Region I 
office in King of Prussia, Pennsylvania, to discuss the violations, their causes and 
Southeastern's corrective actions. A copy of the predecisional enforcement conference 
summary report is enclosed.  

Based on the information developed during the inspection and the information that you provided 
during the conference, the NRC has determined that four violations of NRC requirements 
occurred. The most significant problem involved Southeastern's abandonment of the two 
gauges, including the Ohmart gauge, which, fortuitously, was found at the Zeta warehouse 
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before it could be sold at an auction. While the entire gauge unit, at the time it was found, 
appeared to be intact with the source assembly shielded, this occurrence, along with the failure 
to account for the other gauge, represents a significant safety issue. Implementation of 
adequate controls of licensed material is intended to prevent members of the public from being 
unknowingly and unnecessarily exposed to radiation. Abandonment of generally licensed 
radioactive material constitutes a violation of 10 CFR (Code of Federal Regulations) 31.5.  

Three other violations were identified during the inspection regarding the use of generally 
licensed sources at the Southeastern facility. The violations are fully described in the 
referenced inspection report. Between 1986 and 1992, Southeastern used four generally 
licensed gauges containing byproduct material, and did not assure that the devices were tested 
for proper operation of their on-off mechanisms and indicators. The labels affixed to an Ohmart 
Gauge (Scanning Gauge, Serial No. 8529) required that device dismantling and relocation be 
performed by persons specifically licensed by the NRC or an Agreement State. Contrary to this 
requirement, at some time prior to October 1999, Southeastern allowed the dismantling/removal 
of the Ohmart Model gauge by employees or contractors who were not specifically licensed to 
perform these activities. Also, on at least four occasions between 1986 and 1992, Southeastern 
installed and subsequently removed from installation, the four generally licensed gauges 
containing byproduct material, and did not maintain records of their installation and removal.  

As you stated at the predecisional enforcement conference, three of the gauges have been 
permanently removed from the Southeastern facility and returned to the manufacturers. The 
search for the remaining NDC thickness gauge included a walk-down of the Southeastern facility 
in New Brunswick, New Jersey and the Zeta facility in Washington Township, New Jersey. In 
addition, you have alerted the scrap dealer, and employees and contractors working at the 
facility, to inform you if they find the gauge. Other than the missing NDC gauge, Southeastern 
has no other generally licensed devices remaining at the facility. We have received your written 
report, dated December 21, 1999, regarding the missing NDC gauge containing a radioactive 
source.  

The violation involving abandonment of the Ohmart gauge is being cited in the attached Notice 
and is classified as a Severity Level III violation in accordance with the "General Statement of 
Policy and Procedure for NRC Enforcement Actions" (Enforcement Policy), NUREG 1600. This 
violation was identified based upon a contact between a third party and the NRC. The 
abandonment of the missing NDC gauge is not being cited as part of this violation for the 
reasons discussed below.  

In accordance with the Enforcement Policy, a base civil penalty in the amount of $2,750 is 
considered for a Severity Level III violation or problem. Because the Southeastern facility has 
not been the subject of an escalated enforcement action within the last two years or two 
inspections, the NRC considered whether credit was warranted for Corrective Action in 
accordance with the civil penalty assessment process in Section VI.B.2 of the Enforcement 
Policy. Credit for corrective actions is warranted because once you were put on notice of the 
apparent violation, Southeastern's actions, as described at the conference, were considered 
prompt and comprehensive. These actions include, but are not limited to, (1) returning the 
Ohmart gauge to the manufacturer for disposal; (2) making arrangements to have two other
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thickness gauges in your possession returned to their manufacturer (NDC) for proper disposal; 
(3) continuing efforts to locate the other missing NDC gauge, including searching the facility and 
alerting your staff and contractors to the loss of the gauge and the safety implications. We 
understand that there are no other generally licensed devices left at the Southeastern facility, 
with the possible exception of the missing gauge.  

Therefore, to encourage prompt and comprehensive correction of violations, I have been 
authorized to not propose a civil penalty for the abandoned Ohmart gauge. However, similar 
violations in the future could result in further escalated enforcement action.  

The NRC is not taking enforcement action for the remaining violations identified during the 
inspection, including the abandonment of the missing NDC gauge. Southeastern assisted in 
identifying these violations during the portion of the NRC inspection conducted at your facility 
and through your continued efforts to locate the missing NDC gauge after the NRC inspector left 
the Southeastern facility. Under the Interim Enforcement Policy for Generally Licensed Devices, 
63 FR 66492, enforcement action normally will not be taken for violations of 10 CFR 31.5 if they 
are identified by the general licensee, and reported to the NRC if reporting is required, provided 
(among other things) that the general licensee takes appropriate corrective action to address the 
specific violations and prevent recurrence of similar problems. This approach is intended to 
encourage general licensees to determine if applicable requirements have been met, to search 
their facilities to assure that sources are located, and to develop appropriate corrective action 
when deficiencies are found. The NRC recognizes your cooperation in this regard.  

The NRC has concluded that information regarding the reason for the violations, and the 
corrective actions taken and planned to correct the violations and prevent recurrence, were 
already described adequately during the inspection, and in the predecisional enforcement 
conference, as documented herein and in the enforcement conference report. Therefore, you 
are not required to respond to this letter unless the description therein does not accurately 
reflect Southeastern's corrective actions or Southeastern's position. In that case, or if you 
choose to provide additional information, you should follow the instructions specified in the 
enclosed Notice.  

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.790 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of this letter and its 
enclosure, and your response (if any) will be placed in the NRC Public Document Room (PDR).  

Sincerely, 

- . HubertJ 
Regional Administrator

Docket No. 999-90001
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Enclosure: 
1. Notice of Violation 
2. Predecisional Enforcement Conference Summary Report 

cc w/encl: 
Alfred Teo, President 
John Reier, Chief Financial Officer 
State of New Jersey
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